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iR B fisE « NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
#ZE —FF _4F 1= F=+—HIFFZ For the year ended 31st December 2002

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Bank are the provision of banking, financial and
other related services. The principal activities of the subsidiaries are shown in
Note 24 to the accounts.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

(b)

Basis of preparation

The accounts have been prepared under the historical cost convention as
modified by the revaluation of certain bank premises and properties, and
investments in securities, and in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and comply with Statements of Standard
Accounting Practice (“SSAPs”) issued by the Hong Kong Society of
Accountants (“HKSA").

In the current year, the Group has adopted the following SSAPs issued by
the HKSA which are effective for accounting periods commencing on or
after 1st January 2002:

SSAP1 (revised)

Presentation of financial statements

SSAP15 (revised)

Cash flow statements

SSAP34 (revised) Employee benefits

The changes to the Group’s accounting policies and the effect of adopting
these new policies are set out in the following paragraphs.

Consolidation

The consolidated accounts include the accounts of the Bank and its
subsidiaries (“the Group”) made up to 31st December. Subsidiaries are
those entities in which the Group controls the composition of the board of
directors, controls more than half of the voting power or holds more than
half of the issued share capital. The results of subsidiaries acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated profit and loss
account from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of
disposal, as appropriate.

All significant intercompany transactions and balances within the Group
are eliminated on consolidation.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary represents the difference
between the proceeds of the sale and the Group's share of its net assets
together with any goodwill/negative goodwill taken to reserves and which
was not previously charged or recognised in the consolidated profit and
loss account.

In the Bank’s balance sheet the investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost

less provision for impairment losses. The results of subsidiaries are accounted
for by the Bank on the basis of dividends received and receivable.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Associated companies

An associated company is a company, not being a subsidiary, in which an
equity interest is held for the long term and significant influence is exercised
in its management.

The consolidated profit and loss account includes the Group’s share of the
results of the associated companies for the year, and the consolidated
balance sheet includes the Group’s share of the net assets of the associated
companies including goodwill (net of accumulated amortisation) on
acquisition.

In the Bank’s balance sheet the investments in associated companies are
stated at cost less provision for impairment losses. The results of the
associated companies are accounted for by the Bank on the basis of
dividends received and receivable.

Equity accounting is discontinued when the carrying amount of the investment
in an associate reaches zero, unless the Group has incurred obligations or
guaranteed obligations in respect of the associated companies.

Revenue recognition

Interest income is recognised in the profit and loss account as it accrues,
except in the case of doubtful debts where interest is credited to a suspense
account which is netted in the balance sheet against the relevant balances.

Fees and commission income are recognised when earned, unless they
relate to transactions involving an interest rate risk or other risks which
extend beyond the current period, in which case they are amortised over
the relevant period.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is

established.

Advances to customers, banks and other financial institutions

Advances to customers, banks and other financial institutions are reported
on the balance sheet at the principal amount outstanding net of provisions
for bad and doubtful debts. Advances to banks and other financial institutions
include placements with banks and other financial institutions for more than
one year. Cash rebates granted in relation to residential mortgage loans
are capitalised and amortised on a straight line basis over the prepayment
penalty period not exceeding three years.

All advances are recognised when cash is advanced to borrowers.
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HZE-ZFTZLT_4F 1= H=+—HI-FJZ For the year ended 31st December 2002

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(f)

(g)

(h)

Provision for bad and doubtful debts

The Group internally classifies loans and advances into five main categories:
pass, special mention, substandard, doubtful and loss. The classification of
loans and advances is largely based on the assessment of the borrower's
capacity to repay and on the degree of doubt about the collectibility of
interest and/or principal. The periods that payments of interest and/or
principal have been overdue are also taken into account when classifying
the loans and advances.

Provisions are made against specific loans and advances as and when the
Directors have doubts on the ultimate recoverability of principal or interest
in full. Specific provision is made to reduce the carrying value of the asset,
taking into account available collateral, to the expected net realisable value
based on the Directors’ assessment of the potential losses on those identified
loans and advances on a case-by-case basis. Where it is not possible to
reliably estimate the loss, the Group applies pre-determined provisioning
levels to the unsecured portion of loans and advances based on the
classification of the respective loans and advances.

In addition, amounts have been set aside as a general provision for bad
and doubtful debts. Both specific and general provisions are deducted form
“Advances and other accounts” and “Trade bills” in the balance sheet.
When there is no realistic prospect of recovery, the outstanding debt is
written off.

Repossessed assets

Assets acquired by repossession of collateral for realisation continue to be
reported as advances. Provision is made on the shortfall between the
expected sales proceeds from realisation of the repossessed assets and the
outstanding advances.

Translation of foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities expressed in foreign
currencies at the balance sheet date are translated at rates of exchange
ruling at the balance sheet date. Exchange differences arising in these
cases are dealt with in the profit and loss account.

The balance sheet of associated companies expressed in foreign currencies
are translated at the rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date
whilst the profit and loss account is translated at an average rate for the
period. Exchange differences are dealt with as a movement in reserves.

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited ® 2002 Annual Report &/



2

i B B & « NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

TESHEN (@)
(i) Ex&E
i REEERDE

(i)

(i)

RIOTFERMETZRAES
RERZERESRERITEA
o TER TG AERAE
HABEREEH -

B HEREE

BF HEAHS50F - B
mEZBEE
HE®ME BEHF10F - B

K& mMEZBEE

A—AABET=A=+—A
£ AEEERRBTRER
ML — SB[ - ARER
R B 38 175 £80R
EBHL  MBRARTEE
REHTEMES -

(V&

B RE DRI ERERE
BMESRITEAR - TERE
EZhE A EAFH4ZE10F
NEBEHEH -

BERHEBREEEZREB

EEFHEER R&EEGZE
WERINRERATERTE
ERME  GRERBEDH
B HERRBTIZEEEN
RRE - At EREEE
FRBEREBEAR(WNE
) BREFBEEEREANR
[ EE - ZEREBERE
HERAR  REZEENAE
Sk - MR EBERYL T BEZ
BEZEMES  HEERR
EEEMAE

HERTEERNEZAET
BHERSFRATHEER
HEZER  TRNESRER
Ak - BRBECEMRES
HREBREREEN - JIER

68 FEIBRT(EMNERAT « —SE-FFH

2

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(i)

Fixed assets

(i)

(i)

(ifi)

Bank premises and properties

Bank premises and properties are stated at cost or valuation less
accumulated impairment losses and depreciation calculated to write
off the assets over their estimated useful lives on a straight line basis
as follows:

Unexpired terms of the lease
Lesser of period of lease or 50 years

Leasehold land
Buildings

Leasehold improvements Lesser of period of lease or 10 years

Effective 31st December 1994, no further revaluations of bank
premises and properties have been carried out. The Group places
reliance on paragraph 80 of SSAP 17 which provides exemption
from the need to make regular revaluations of bank premises and
properties.

Furniture and equipment

Furniture and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
and less depreciation calculated to write off the assets on a straight
line basis over their estimated useful lives of between 4 and 10
years.

Impairment and gain or loss on disposal of fixed assets

At each balance sheet date, both internal and external sources of
information are considered to assess whether there is any indication
that bank premises and properties, and furniture and equipment are
impaired. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated and where relevant, an impairment loss is recognised
to reduce the asset to its recoverable amount. Such impairment losses
are recognised in the profit and loss account except where the asset
is carried at valuation and the impairment loss does not exceed the
revaluation surplus for that same asset, in which case it is treated as
a revaluation decrease.

The gain or loss on disposal of a fixed asset is the difference between
the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset,
and is recognised in the profit and loss account. Any revaluation
reserve balance remaining attributable to the relevant asset is
transferred to retained earnings and is shown as a movement in
reserves.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(i) Investments in securities

(i)

(i)

(ifi)

Held-to-maturity securities

Held-to-maturity securities are dated debt securities which the Group
has the expressed intention and ability to hold to maturity. These
securities are stated at cost adjusted for the amortisation of premiums
or discounts arising on acquisition over the periods to maturity, less
provision for diminution in their value. The carrying amounts of
individual held-to-maturity securities or holdings of the same securities
are reviewed at the balance sheet date in order to assess the credit
risk and whether the carrying amounts are expected to be recovered.
Provisions are made for the amount of the carrying value which the
Group does not expect to recover and are recognised as an expense
in the profit and loss account as they arise.

The amortisation of premiums and discounts arising on acquisition of
dated debt securities is included as part of interest income and interest
expense. Profits or losses on realisation of held-to-maturity securities
are accounted for in the profit and loss account as they arise.

Trading securities

Trading securities are securities which were acquired for the purpose
of generating a profit from short-term fluctuations in price and are
stated at fair value. Changes in fair value of trading securities are
recognised in the profit and loss account as they arise. Profits and
losses on disposal of trading securities, representing the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amounts, are
recognised in the profit and loss account as they arise.

Non-trading securities

Non-trading securities include debt securities held for liquidity purposes
which are held primarily to maintain the liquidity ratio as defined in
the Fourth Schedule of the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance and other
debt and equity securities which are not held for trading purposes.
Non-trading securities are stated at fair value on the balance sheet.
Changes in fair value of non-trading securities are recognised in the
investment revaluation reserve until the security is sold or determined
to be impaired, at which time the cumulative gain or loss representing
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the relevant security, together with any surplus/deficit transferred
from the investment revaluation reserve, is included in the profit and
loss account.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k)

()

(m)

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair
value of the Group's share of the net assets of the acquired subsidiary and
associated company at the date of acquisition.

Goodwill is amortised on a straight line basis over its estimated useful life
not exceeding 20 years.

Deferred taxation

Deferred taxation is accounted for at the current taxation rate in respect of
timing differences between profit as computed for taxation purposes and
profit as stated in the accounts to the extent that a liability or an asset is
expected to be payable or recoverable in the foreseeable future.

Finance and operating leases
(i)  Finance leases and hire purchase contracts

The amounts due from customers in respect of hire purchase contracts
and finance leases are recorded in the balance sheet as “Advance
and other accounts” at the amounts of net investments, which represent
the total rentals receivable under hire purchase contracts and finance
leases less unearned finance income. Finance income implicit in the
rentals receivable less loan origination costs is credited to the profit
and loss account over the hire period or the lease period as
appropriate so as to produce an approximately constant periodic
rate of return on the net investment for each accounting period.
Dealer commission paid for hire purchase contracts or finance leases
is amortised on a straight line basis over the terms of the leases.

(i)  Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases.
Rentals applicable to such operating leases net of any incentives
received from the lessor are charged to the profit and loss account
on a straight line basis over the lease term.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

Off-balance sheet financial instruments

Off-balance sheet financial instruments include derivatives, such as futures,
forwards, swaps, options and other transactions undertaken by the Group
in the foreign exchange, interest rate, equity and other markets. The
accounting for these instruments is dependent upon whether the transactions
are undertaken for trading purposes or to hedge risk.

Derivative financial instruments other than those transacted to hedge risk
are deemed to be held for trading purposes.

Transactions undertaken for trading purposes are re-measured to their fair
value. Fair values are obtained periodically from various sources, including
quoted market prices, discounted cash flow models and option pricing
models as appropriate. The gain or loss arising is recognised in the profit
and loss account.

Unrealised gains on trading derivatives which are marked to market are
included in “Advances and other accounts”. Unrealised losses on transactions
which are marked to market are included in “Other accounts and provisions”.

On the date a derivative contract is entered into, the Group may designate
certain derivative transactions as hedges. Derivatives are classified as a
hedge when the following criteria are met:

(i)  formal documentation of the hedging instrument, hedged item, and
hedging relationship is prepared; and

(i)  the hedge is documented showing that it is expected to be highly
effective in reducing the price or interest rate risk in the hedged item
throughout the reporting period.

Transactions designated as hedges are valued on an equivalent basis to the
assets, liabilities or net positions that they are hedging. Any profit or loss is
recognised in the profit and loss account on the same basis as that arising
from the related assets, liabilities or net positions.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

(o)

(p)

Off-balance sheet financial instruments (Continued)

If the derivative transaction no longer meets the criteria for a hedge set out
above, the derivative is deemed to be held for trading purposes and is
accounted for as set out above.

Derivative transactions are offset only when the Group has the ability to
insist on net settlement such as by means of entering into a master netting
agreement or other legally enforceable arrangements. Any right to insist on
a net seftlement that is contingent is only taken into account when the
Group is able to enforce net settlement in all situations of default by the
other party or parties including insolvency of any parties to the contract,
and the ability to insist on a net settlement is assured beyond doubt.

Derivative transactions are not offset unless the related seftlement currencies
are the same, or are denominated in freely convertible currencies for which
quoted exchange rates are available in an active market.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate
of the amount can be made. Where the Group expects a provision to be
reimbursed, for example under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is
recognised as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually
certain.

Provision is made when it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will arise and the amounts can be reliably estimated.

Employee benefits
(i)  Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. An accrual is made for
the estimated liability for annual leave and long-service leave as a
result of services rendered by employees up to the balance sheet
date.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(p)

(q)

Employee benefits (Continued)
(i) Pension obligations

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement scheme under
the Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance (the “ORSO Scheme”)
and another defined contribution retirement scheme under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (the “MPF Scheme”)
for those employees of the Group who are eligible and have elected
to participate in the schemes. The Group's contributions to the ORSO
Scheme are made based on a percentage of the eligible employees’
basic salaries and those made to the MPF Scheme are made based
on a percentage of the eligible employees’ relevant income as defined
in the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. These
contributions are expensed as incurred and are reduced by
contributions forfeited by those employees of the Group who leave
the schemes prior to vesting fully in the contributions. The assets of
the schemes are held separately from those of the Group in
independently administered funds.

Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that is engaged
either in providing services (business segment) or in providing services
within a particular economic environment (geographical segment), which is
subject to risks and rewards that are different from those of other segments.
Segments with a majority of revenue earned from services provided to
external customers and whose revenue, results or assets are 10 per cent or
more of all the segments are reported separately.

In accordance with the Group's internal financial reporting the Group has
determined that business segments be presented as the primary reporting
format and geographical as the secondary reporting format.

Transactions between the business segments are on normal commercial
terms and conditions. Funds are ordinarily reallocated between segments,
resulting in funding cost transfers disclosed in operating income. Interest
charged for these funds is based on the Group's funding cost. There are no
other material items of income or expense between the business segments.
Segment assets and liabilities comprise operating assets and liabilities,
being the majority of the balance sheet but excluding taxation.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the year to
acquire segment assets (both tangible and intangible) that are expected to
be used for more than one financial year.

Descriptions of business and geographical segments are set out in Note 37.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(r)

(s)

(t)

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events
and whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation arising from past
events that is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of
economic resources will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be
measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to the
accounts. When a change in the probability of an outflow occurs so that
outflow is probable, it will then be recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and
whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more uncertain events not wholly within the control of the Group.

Contingent assets are not recognised but are disclosed in the notes to the
accounts when an inflow of economic benefits is probable. When inflow is
virtually certain, an asset is recognised.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash
equivalents comprise balances with less than three months’ maturity from
the date of acquisition including cash, balances with banks and other
financial institutions, treasury bills, other eligible bills and certificates of
deposit.

Related parties

For the purposes of these accounts, parties are considered to be related to
the Group if the Group has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the
parties or exercise significant influence over the parties in making financial
or operating decisions, or vice versa, or where the Group and the parties
are subject to common control or common significant influence. Related
parties may be individuals or other entities.

INTEREST INCOME

Interest income includes interest from investments in securities amounting to

HK$389,695,000 (2001: HK$289,099,000).
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OTHER OPERATING INCOME

2002 2001

FET FET

HK$’000 HK$°000

Fees and commission income 331,631 166,786
Less: fees and commission expense (2,363) (3,331)
Net fees and commission income 329,268 163,455
Net gain from foreign exchange activities 8,233 11,646
Net gain from trading securities 2,271 14,033

Dividend income from investments in
securities:

— Listed investments 6,299 679

— Unlisted investments 1,678 780
Others 42,983 12,326
390,732 202,919

The Group has entered into a coupon strip transaction involving a special purpose
partnership in which the Group is the majority general partner. The Group does
not control the partnership which was set up solely to invest in bond interest
coupons, and consequently the partnership is not consolidated in the Group's
accounts. As at 31st December 2002, the Group's investment in such partnership
amounted to HK$39,738,000 (2001: HK$Nil) and is included in “Advances and
other accounts” in the balance sheet. The total assets and liabilities of the
partnership are amounted to HK$170,984,000 and HK$111,140,000 respectively
as at 31st December 2002 (2001: HK$Nil).

The return from this investment represented tax benefits in the form of a share of
tax losses of the partnership net of the expected loss on disposal of the investments
and is included in “Others” of “Other operating income” amounted to
HK$7,094,000 for the year ended 31st December 2002 (2001: HK$Nil). The
Group's Hong Kong profits tax charged for the year set out in Note 9 is the gross
tax figure before taking into account of the benefit of the share of tax losses of
the partnership.
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EEXH OPERATING EXPENSES
2002 2001
FET FHT
HK$’000 HK$°000
BIXH: Staff costs:
—HekEMETE — Salaries and other costs 177,058 173,064
— BHE — Redundancy payment 269 40
— Bk&XH (HF13) — Retirement benefit costs (Note 13) 11,655 9,532
188,982 182,636
WMERZEX L Premises and equipment expenses,
(TBENE) : excluding depreciation:
— WEMEL — Rental of premises 11,845 9,049
— Hfh — Others 20,881 16,821
e Depreciation 25,479 24,884
% B AT B Auditors’ remuneration 1,084 1,512
H it 88 X i Other operating expenses 58,989 54,595
307,260 289,497
RERRE CHARGE FOR BAD AND DOUBTFUL DEBTS
2002 2001
FHET FET
HK$7000 HK$°000
BB Specific provisions
— HEEE — new provisions 195,854 237,682
— %[ — releases (50,558) (165,392)
— [ — recoveries (21,735) (6,280)
123,561 66,010
— BB General provisions 57,951 -
REBER X HFE Net charge to profit and loss account
(Kix21) (Note 21) 181,512 66,010
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IR BB & « NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
#ZE —FF _4F 1= F=+—HIFFZ For the year ended 31st December 2002

NET GAIN ON DISPOSAL AND REDEMPTION OF HELD-TO-MATURITY
SECURITIES AND NON-TRADING SECURITIES

2002 2001
FHET TET
HK$’000 HK$'000

Net gain on disposal and redemption
of held-to-maturity securities* 8,228 5,748

Net gain on disposal of non-trading

securities 20,041 14,946
28,269 20,694

* During the year, the Bank sold a held-to-maturity security with an amortised cost of

approximately HK$311,589,000 to better control concentration of credit risk related
to the issuer of the security.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ emoluments

The aggregate amounts of emoluments payable to the Directors of the Bank
during the year are as follows:

2002 2001
FHERT FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
Fees 689 730
Other emoluments:
Basic salaries, housing allowances,
other allowances and
benefits-in-kind 7,615 8,222
Discretionary bonuses 4,240 4,130
Contributions to pension schemes for
Directors 703 649
13,247 13,731
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

Directors’ fees disclosed above include HK$450,000 (2001: HK$390,000)

paid to Independent Non-Executive Directors.

The emoluments of the Directors fall within the following bands:

Emolument bands EZAH
Number of Directors

2002 2001
HK$Nil — HK$1,000,000 8 6
HK$1,000,001 — HK$2,000,000 1 =
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 - 1
HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000 - 1
HK$3,000,001 — HK$3,500,000 1 =
HK$3,500,001 — HK$4,000,000 1 2
HK$4,000,001 — HK$4,500,000 1 =

There was no arrangement under which any Director waived or agreed to
waive any remuneration during the year.

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group for
the year include three Directors (2001: three) whose emoluments are reflected
in the analysis presented above. The emoluments payable to the remaining
two (2001: two) individuals during the year are as follows:

2002 2001
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$°000
Basic salaries, housing allowances,
other allowances and benefits
in kind 2,850 2,020
Bonuses 2,190 2,600
Contributions to pension schemes 263 173
5,303 4,793
The emoluments fell within the following bands:
Emolument bands N
Number of individuals
2002 2001
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1 =
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 - 2
HK$3,000,001 — HK$3,500,000 1 =
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TAXATION

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16% (2001: 16%) on the
estimated assessable profits for the year. Taxation on overseas profits has been
calculated on the estimated assessable profit for the year at the rates of taxation

prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated profit and loss account

represents:
2002 2001
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
Bank and subsidiaries
Hong Kong profits tax (88,376) -
Overseas taxation - (1,244)
(Under)/over-provisions in prior years (24) 75
(88,400) (1,169)

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS

The profit attributable to shareholders is dealt with in the accounts of the Bank to

the extent of HK$522,235,000 (2001: HK$318,023,000).

DIVIDENDS
2002 2001
FHET THET
HK$’000 HK$'000
Interim, paid of HK$0.10
(2001: HK$0.05) per ordinary share 62,437 26,566
Interim, paid of HK$0.10 (2001: HK$0.05)
per convertible preference share 20,222 10,111
Final, proposed of HK$0.25
(2001: HK$0.17) per ordinary share
[Note) 156,093 90,324
Final, proposed of HK$0.25
(2001: HK$0.17) per convertible
preference share (Note) 50,555 34,377
Special, proposed of HK$Nil
(2001: HK$0.05) per ordinary share - 26,566
Special, proposed of HK$Nil (2001:
HK$0.05) per convertible preference share - 10,111
289,307 198,055
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
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12

13

DIVIDENDS (Continued)

Note: At a meeting held on 4th March 2003, the Directors proposed a final dividend of
HK$0.25 per ordinary and convertible preference share. These proposed dividends
are not reflected as dividends payable in these accounts, but will be reflected as an
appropriation of retained earnings for the year ending 31st December 2003.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit attributable to
shareholders of HK$482,429,000 (2001: HK$330,412,000) less dividends
payable on convertible preference shares of HK$70,777,000 (2001:
HK$54,599,000) and on 588,681,975 (2001: 491,000,336 shares, being the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on the profit attributable to
shareholders of HK$482,429,000 (2001: HK$330,412,000) and on 790,901,193
(2001: 591,832,933) shares, being the weighted average number of ordinary
shares and convertible preference shares in issue during the year.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS

The retirement benefit scheme cost charged to the profit and loss account represents
contributions payable by the Group to the ORSO Scheme and the MPF Scheme
(the “Schemes”).

Under the ORSO scheme, the Group's contributions are reduced by contributions
forfeited by those employees who leave the Schemes prior to vesting fully in the
contributions. Forfeited contributions totalling HK$1,300,000 (2001:
HK$2,190,000) were utilised during the year leaving HK$12,000 (2001:
HK$11,000) available at the year end to reduce future contributions.

No contributions were payable to the Schemes at the year end (2001: HK$Nil).
The assets of the Schemes are held separately from those of the Group in
independently administered funds.
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14 CASH AND SHORT-TERM FUNDS

oy 4E | FRIT
Group Bank
2002 2001 2002 2001
FET FH#T FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
EfRe RIRITHE Cash and balances with
Hit o ais banks and other financial
e institutions 161,525 176,625 161,511 176,611
EHBAER Money at call and short
notice 15,402,917 5,892,102 15,402,917 5,892,102
&% (BN Treasury bills (including
EEEFE) Exchange Fund Bills) 211,398 287,704 211,398 287,704
15,775,840 6,356,431 15,775,826 6,356,417
RAEZESAWMAT An analysis of treasury bills held is as follows:
FEBRART
Group and Bank
2002 2001
FHET TET
HK$’000 HK$'000
HEHH  REHKE Held-fo-maturity, at amortised cost:
— REELT — Listed in Hong Kong 38,976 -
— LW — Unlisted 172,422 287,704
211,398 287,704
FHERTE Market value of listed treasury bills 39,371 —

Exg+-—A=T—BZEIHE ERHEH
RZHRAFMT :

=EAKUKT
—FRUTEBB=1EA
LFEFATERE—F

The maturity profile of treasury bills analysed by the remaining period as at 31st
December to the contractual maturity dates is as follows:

Three months or less
One year or less, but over three months
Five years or less, but over one year

FEERART
Group and Bank
2002 2001
FET FHT
HK$’000 HK$°000
92,844 185,000
39,724 83,000
78,830 19,704
211,398 287,704
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15 PLACEMENTS WITH BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

rE REAT

Group Bank
2002 2001 2002 2001
FET FET FET FHT
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
1,033,844 547,130 1,033,844 508,142
- (29,241) - -
1,033,844 517,889 1,033,844 508,142

The maturity profile of placements with banks and other financial institutions
maturing between one and twelve months analysed by the remaining period as at

31st December to the contractual maturity dates is as follows:

rEE 1T
Group Bank
2002 2001 2002 2001
FET FET FET FET
HKS$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
1,033,844 308,142 1,033,844 308,142
- 200,000 - 200,000
- 38,988 - —
1,033,844 547,130 1,033,844 508,142
TRADE BILLS
AEBRAEBIT
Group and Bank
2002 2001
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
Trade bills 109,374 65,390
Provision for bad and doubtful debts
[Note 21) (1,094) (604)
108,280 64,786
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iR B ft & « NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
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CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT HELD

Held-to-maturity, at amortised cost:
— Listed outside Hong Kong
— Unlisted

Non-trading securities, at fair value:

— Unlisted

Market value of listed certificates of
deposit held

FEBRART
Group and Bank

2002 2001
FHET THET
HK$’000 HK$°000
167,640 89,915
1,226,680 1,174,747
_1,394,320 _.. 1,264,662
536,859 769,378
1,931,179 2,034,040
168,035 94,644

The maturity profile of certificates of deposit held analysed by the remaining
period as at 31st December to the contractual maturity dates is as follows:

Three months or less
One year or less, but over three months
Five years or less, but over one year

FEERAET

Group and Bank
2002 2001
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$°000
89,985 184,038
642,976 570,251
1,198,218 1,279,751
1,931,179 2,034,040
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18

TRADING SECURITIES

AEBRAEIT
Group and Bank
2002 2001
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
At fair value:
Debt securities
— Unlisted 38,525 —
Trading securities are analysed by issver
as follows:
— Corporate entities 38,525 —

The maturity profile of trading debt securities analysed by the remaining period
as at 31st December to the contractual maturity dates is as follows:

FEBREARST
Group and Bank
2002 2001
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$°000
Five years or less, but over one year 38,525 —
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BB RS 19
tmESH Listed securities, at
1R SR AR amortised cost
— REEBLT — Listed in Hong
Kong
— REABUS — Listed outside
& Hong Kong
FELEmES Unlisted securities,
1R S5 P AR at amortised cost
RERE Provision for diminution
in value
tWmEH2TE Market value of

listed securities

RENMZEFRT -_A=T-HEARH
MBI RBRAEZBRATMAT

=EAHAT Three months or less
—FHUT One year or less, but
B8 =18 A over three months
REHUT Five years or less, but
BiE—F over one year
HRRF Over five years

iR B ft & « NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
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HELD-TO-MATURITY SECURITIES

r5H AR

Group Bank
2002 2001 2002 2001
FEBT TET FHET TET
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
116,363 92,051 116,363 92,051
1,930,279 1,320,910 1,930,279 1,320,910
2,046,642 1,412,961 2,046,642 1412961
4,472,614 2,497,559 4,918,913 3,189,202
- (1,248) (39,716) -
4,472,614 2,496,311 4,879,197 _..3,189,202
6,519,256 3,909,272 6,925,839 4,602,163
2,134,466 1,412,231 2,134,466 1,412,231

The maturity profile of held-to-maturity securities analysed by the remaining period
as at 31st December to the contractual maturity dates is as follows:

r5H AR

Group Bank
2002 2001 2002 2001
FET TE T FHET TFET
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
155,426 44,967 155,426 44,967
1,258,716 378,966 1,258,716 378,966
3,561,674 2,141,955 3,968,257 2,834,846
1,543,440 1,343,384 1,543,440 1,343,384
6,519,256 3,909,272 6,925,839 4,602,163
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19 BEEHZIBSZ @) 19 HELD-TO-MATURITY SECURITIES (Continued)

RENRZEBFRETEZONAT ¢

Held-to-maturity securities are analysed by issuer as follows:

rEE KR 1T
Group Bank
2002 2001 2002 2001
FHERT FAET FHET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
R BT Central governments and
KRR 1T central banks 143,144 136,760 143,144 136,760
RITREA Banks and other financial
TREE institutions 2,880,660 1,610,947 2,880,660 1,610,947
% Corporate entities 3,495,452 2,161,565 3,902,035 2,854,456
6,519,256 3,909,272 6,925,839 4,602,163
20 ERREMEE 20 ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS
rEE RRIT
Group Bank
2002 2001 2002 2001
FERT FETT FERT FET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
EEEX Advances to customers 32,409,985 28,086,680 32,073,558 27,024,693
REREE Provision for bad and doubtful
(Htz£21) debts (Note 21)
B — General (273,387) (215,926) (271,728) (213,343)
— %7 — Specific (270,127) (965,669) (130,109) (399,195)
31,866,471 26,905,085 31,671,721 26,412,155
RITREREAM Advances to banks and other
STREBER financial institutions 354,994 299,531 354994 299,531
AT S Accrued interest 306,140 249,146 301,206 236,464
H i BRI8 Other accounts 740,766 577,183 729,465 572,593
FEET A B R E A Provision against accrued
BRIBE S interest and other accounts
— 5 (H221) — Specific (Note 21) (1,442) (10,489) (1,003) (1,807)
1,045,464 815840 1,029,668 _....807,250
33,266,929 28,020,456 33,056,383 27,518,936

Included in other accounts is a property available for sale of HK$210,000,000
(2001: HK$210,000,000).

oI ot

Lt BRIB B4 AT & %)% 210,000,0007%8
(ZZZ—% :210,000,000% ) °
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& B M & « NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

HZE-ZFTZLT_4F 1= H=+—HI-FJZ For the year ended 31st December 2002

ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS (Confinued)
The gross amount of non-performing loans, which represents advances on which

interest is being placed in suspense or on which interest accrual has ceased, is
analysed as follows:

rEH RRIT
Group Bank
2002 2001 2002 2001
FET FHET FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
TRAOER Non-performing loans 738,932 1,929,473 473,242 1,042,463
TRHER Specific provisions made in
ZHEIBREE respect of such advances 267,275 955,944 127,257 389,470
RF B Amount of interest in suspense 157,980 281,495 49,719 91,555

R-FBE_F+_A=+—0 AKEY
BERERRTREMERBE L TROER
(ZFF—%F:8) -

AEERKABIZTIBATFERSHIME
ERNEFPERZ23% (T -5 :
6.8%) R1.5%(—FZF—F :3.8%) °

BELABERBREARERERZE
HmEE -

EFEXREREAMEREABAOZR
B EAMMT

At 315t December 2002, there were no non-performing loans in respect of advances
to banks and other financial institutions (2001: HK$Nil).

Non-performing loans to customers of the Group and the Bank represent 2.3%
(2001: 6.8%) and 1.5% (2001: 3.8%) of the advances to customers of the Group
and the Bank respectively.

The above specific provisions were made after taking into account the value of
collateral in respect of such advances.

Advances to customers include investment in finance lease receivables and hire
purchase contracts, analysed as follows:

rEH RERIT
Group Bank
2002 2001 2002 2001
FET FET FET Fi&x
HKS$’000 HK$°000 HKS$’000 HK$’000
FEWIR B B Gross investment receivable:
—F LT Not later than one year 214,535 160,084 214,535 160,084
—FULE Later than one year and not
BRENAT later than five years 715,126 563,122 715,126 563,122
HEMNE Later than five years 1,922,430 1,446,098 1,922,430 1,446,098
I 4% IR HR Undated - 832 - =
2,852,091 2,170,136 2,852,091 2,169,304
P i Unearned future finance
B 7 M A income (756,631) (600,163) (756,631) (600,163)
KEFH Net investment 2,095,460 1,569,973 2,095,460 1,569,141
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20 ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS (Continued)

MEHERHEBANZREFEINM

Not later than one year

The net investment in finance lease receivables and hire purchase contracts is

analysed as follows:

Later than one year and not

later than five years
Later than five years

Undated

AALARERERERANIRERE

ZEERBELTEKX -

RoBE-f+-A=+-A2EZBHE
TEBARERABA N REREEE
#w(ZZZ—4 :832,0008T) °

EFEFERT-_A=+T—HEANIHAE
RSB HREZHRAITAT -

AR EREAEEE

=EAHIUKT
—FHUAT
EBEB={A4
RFEHFUT
BBE—%F
HBBRF
b & IR

Repayable on demand

Three months or less

One year or less, but over
three months

Five years or less, but over
one year

Over five years

Undated

88 HEIIHWBRT (EM ERDLE « —ER-FFR

iy E | FRIT

Group Bank
2002 2001 2002 2001
FET FHET FET FHE T
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
134,767 123,875 134,767 123,875
448,175 422,109 448,175 422,109
1,512,518 1,023,157 1,512,518 1,023,157
- 832 - -
2,095,460 1,569,973 2,095,460 1,569,141

The unguaranteed residual value included in the gross investment in finance lease
receivables and hire purchase contracts above was considered to be immaterial.

No allowance for uncollectible investment in finance lease receivables and hire
purchase contracts is included in the provision for loan losses as at 31st December

2002 (2001: HK$832,000).

The maturity profile of advances to customers analysed by the remaining period
as at 31st December to the contractual maturity dates is as follows:

g E | FRIT

Group Bank
2002 2001 2002 2001
FET FHET FET FH# T
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
1,385,880 1,003,023 1,385,880 1,003,016
3,574,822 2,804,398 3,574,822 2,802,928
2,403,406 1,917,592 2,403,406 1,915,819
12,777,221 13,439,579 12,706,484 13,347,791
11,520,941 6,892,628 11,520,941 6,812,688
747,715 2,029,460 482,025 1,142,451
32,409,985 28,086,680 32,073,558 27,024,693
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20 ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS (Continued)

as follows:

Group

Balance as at 1st January
Amounts written off
Recoveries of advances written

off in previous years
Charge for the year (Note 6)
Interest suspended during the year
Suspended interest recovered
Exchange and other adjustments

W+ = A=+—HZ 4% Balance as at 31st December

HRA :

BERR (W16

RPER (320

Rt B R E
| (H1i20)

Deducted from:

Trade bills (Note 16)

Advances to customers (Note 20)

Accrued inferest and other
accounts (Note 20)

The maturity profile of advances to banks and other financial institutions analysed
by the remaining period as at 31st December to the contractual maturity dates is

FEBRARST
Group and Bank
2002 2001
FHET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
Repayable on demand - 70,000
Three months or less 82,458 46,924
One year or less, but over three months 122,536 22,607
Five years or less, but over one year 150,000 160,000
354,994 299,531
21 PROVISION FOR BAD AND DOUBTFUL DEBTS
RERBE g
Provision for bad and doubtful debts FE
g - At Suspended
Specific General Total interest
FET FET FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
1,005,399 216,530 1,221,929 281,495
(879,126) - (879,126) (110,121)
21,735 - 21,735 -
123,561 57,951 181,512 -
- - - 96,558
- - - (109,971)
- - - 19
271,569 274,481 546,050 157,980
- 1,094 1,094
270,127 273,387 543,514
1,442 - 1,442
271,569 274,481 546,050
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21 REEEE @) 21 PROVISION FOR BAD AND DOUBTFUL DEBTS (Confinved)
rEB® (&) Group (Continued)
2001
RERER g2
Provision for bad and doubtful debts 8
B — & 5t Suspended
Specific General Total interest
FHET FHET FHET FHET
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
R—R—Hz&#% Balance as at 1st January 1,613,570 124,000 1,737,570 335,551
BRA1T Acquired from the Branch 29,335 92,530 121,865 =
i B0 Amounts written off (709,796) - (709,796) (156,34¢)
WEBEEE Recoveries of advances written
EMHE R off in previous years 6,280 - 6,280 -
FRBE (Kits) Charge for the year (Note ¢) 66,010 = 66,010 =
AEEETHE Interest suspended during the year - - - 248,183
W e E Suspended interest recovered - — — (145,893)
R+=—A=+—-82 Balance as at 31st December
g 1,005,399 216,530 1,221,929 281,495
A A Deducted from:
BEZRRE (K1) Trade bills (Note 16) - 604 604
RPER (H720) Advances to customers (Note 20) 965,669 215,926 1,181,595
BRITAEREME R Placements with banks and other
BB ZER (MaE15) financial institutions (Note 15) 29,241 - 29,241
e M B R E A Accrued interest and other
8RIE (fi1:F20) accounts (Note 20) 10,489 — 10,489
1,005,399 216,530 1,221,929

Q0 HEIBRT(EMERAT « —SE-FFH
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21 PROVISION FOR BAD AND DOUBTFUL DEBTS (Confinued)

Bank

Balance as at 1st January
Acquired from a subsidiary
Amounts written off
Recoveries of advances written

off in previous years
Charge for the year
Interest suspended during the year
Suspended interest recovered
Exchange and other adjustments

Balance as at 31st December

Deducted from:

Trade bills (Note 16)

Advances to customers (Note 20)

Accrued interest and other
accounts (Note 20)

Balance as at 1st January
Acquired from the Branch
Amounts written off
Recoveries of advances written

off in previous years
Charge/(credit) for the year
Interest suspended during the year
Suspended interest recovered

Balance as at 31st December

Deducted from:

Trade bills (Note 16)

Advances to customers (Note 20)

Accrued interest and other
accounts (Note 20)

i B B & « NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

HZE-ZFTZLT_4F 1= H=+—HI-FJZ For the year ended 31st December 2002

2002
RERRBE g
Provision for bad and doubtful debts FE
HE - @t Suspended
Specific General Total interest
FET FET FHERT FHERT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
401,002 213,947 614,949 91,555
837 56 893 97
(374,034) - (374,034) (36,742)
2,290 - 2,290 -
101,017 58,819 159,836 -
- - - 50,073
- - - (55,272)
- - - 8
131,112 272,822 403,934 49,719
- 1,094 1,094
130,109 271,728 401,837
1,003 - 1,003
131,112 272,822 403,934
2001
RERBRE e
Provision for bad and doubtful debts B
B2 —& st Suspended
Specific General Total inferest
FAET FAET FETL FETL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
458,927 123,361 582,288 94,957
29,335 92,530 121,865 —
(121,307) — (121,307) (19,405)
1,153 — 1,153 —
32,894 (1,944) 30,950 —
_ — = 114,713
. _ _ (98,710)
401,002 213,947 614,949 91,555
_ 604 604
399,195 213,343 612,538
1,807 — 1,807
401,002 213,947 614,949
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22 FBEEEREZEF 22 NON-TRADING SECURITIES

rEE 1T
Group Bank
2002 2001 2002 2001
FET FET FET FET
HKS$’000 HK$°000 HKS$’000 HK$’000
ZAYE At fair value:
EF Debt securities
— RE B — Listed outside
& EH Hong Kong 308,111 328,487 308,111 328,487
— 3EETm — Unlisted 1,208,163 187,306 1,207,663 186,806
1516274 515793 1515774 515,293
e Equity securities
— REELT — Listed in Hong Kong 500,710 615,578 500,710 613,249
— 3EET — Unlisted 6,656 6,654 6,650 6,648
507,366 622232 507,360 619,897
2,023,640 1,138,025 2,023,134 1,135,190
FtmESFEZTE Market value of listed securities 808,821 944,065 808,821 941,736

FREEERRZAEFE T -_A=1T—R
ERNIHAE I BEZHRAMMAT

The maturity profile of non-trading debt securities analysed by the remaining
period as at 31st December to the contractual maturity dates is as follows:

rEE R IT
Group Bank
2002 2001 2002 2001
FET FET FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BAFE : At fair value:
ZEAHNKT Three months or less 78,378 = 78,378 =
—FHAT One year or less, but
BHEBE=MA over three months 680,695 = 680,695 -
RFEHUT Five years or less, but over
BRE—F one year 522,081 207,453 522,081 207,453
HBBRF Over five years 230,513 303,733 230,513 303,733
A 4% R Hi Undated 4,607 4,607 4,107 4,107
1,516,274 515,793 1,515,774 515,293

02 HEIBRT(EMNERAT « —SE-FFH
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& B M & « NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

HZE-ZFTZLT_4F 1= H=+—HI-FJZ For the year ended 31st December 2002

22 NON-TRADING SECURITIES (Continued)

Non-trading securities are analysed by issuer as follows:

rEE KR 1T
Group Bank
2002 2001 2002 2001
FET FAET FET FAETL
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
Central governments and
central banks 184,364 247,263 184,364 247,263
Banks and other financial
institutions 1,163,272 82,577 1,163,272 82,577
Corporate entities 674,880 807,061 674,874 804,726
Others 1,124 1,124 624 624
2,023,640 1,138,025 2,023,134 1,135,190
23 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATED COMPANIES
rEHE
Group
2002 2001
FERT FETT
HK$’000 HK$°000
Share of net assets 127,125 27,391
Goodwill on acquisition less amortisation 66,181 -
193,306 27,391
RRIT
Bank
2002 2001
FERT FETT
HK$’000 HK$°000
Investments at cost
Unlisted shares 191,660 14,508
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23

24

B — 4+~ H=+1—HI-¥E For the year ended 31st December 2002
RBELNRZRE (8) 23 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATED COMPANIES (Continued)
ARTEERBZBERAENDT Particulars of the associated companies which are directly held by the Bank are as
follows:
RECRITRG
TEXBR BRTRBEREZHE
&t i L Particulars of
FX 3 it 2 Principal activity issued shares held/ BFEZESR
NCIECR Place of and place of issued and fully Interest held
Name incorporation operation paid up capital 2002 2001
B iR (FE) BB REERM 200,000/ & R E & 25.0% 25.0%
BRAA —RRE 1003 7T 2 % i8R
China Ping An Hong Kong General insurance 200,000 ordinary
Insurance (Hong Kong) in Hong Kong shares of
Company Limited HK$100 each
RFRERBR LA REARLNE TR B it A E 500,000,000 24.9% =
The Tai Ping Insurance ([HEl) —RRE
Company, Limited People’s General insurance RMB500,000,000
Republic of in the PRC
China
(“PRC")
RMBARZRE 24 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
RRIT
Bank
2002 2001
FHET TET
HK$’000 HK$'000
RE  BREAE Investments at cost
FEEmERMR Unlisted shares 40,247 40,257

Q4 HEIMRT(EM GRAT o« —BE-_FEH
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#ZE —FF _4F 1= F=+—HIFFZ For the year ended 31st December 2002

REBARZRE &) 24 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
ATREABRIR-_ZEZ_F+A=+— The following is a list of subsidiaries at 31st December 2002, all of which are
REEREZNEBRAR - BRREFEER directly held by the Bank. Except for UB China Business Management Co. Ltd.
ERER AR TR E G B R B S MK which is incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and operating in Hong Kong,
MMREBEEIN  MEEMHE QR all other subsidiaries are incorporated and operating in Hong Kong:
MBEBFMALREE
RECRA
B &2 #15 BFEZESR
DNRAEH TEXRH Particulars of Interest held
Name Principal activities issued shares held 2002 2001
IREMFBEERDA BXRERRANR 25,000,000 B R E A
ICBC (Asia) Finance Limited RZZE_F BTz EBR
+t A=+ /B HE 25,000,000 ordinary 100% 100%
Deposit-taking company shares of HK$1 each
licence revoked on
26th July 2002
ICBC (Asia) Nominee Limited REREARS 100/ B EE
Provision of 1008 T2 & @K
nominee services 100 ordinary shares 100% 100%
of HK$100 each
IRBNBEERAA HERS 26,000,000/ Gk E &
ICBC (Asia) Futures Limited Futures index BTz ERER
dealing 26,000,000 ordinary 100% 100%
shares of
HK$1 each
IREMNEXRRDA RZEZZF+ZHKH 10,0008% & iR E &
ICBC (Asia) Property HUEH 5 1T 2 & Bk
Management Limited Deregistered on 6th 10,000 ordinary - 100%
December 2002 shares of
HK$1 each
IRDNEEERRAA BEeEE 6,000,000(% & R H &
ICBC (Asia) Bullion Bullion dealing BTz ERER
Company Limited 6,000,000 ordinary 100% 100%

TREMREEEFRAA
ICBC (Asia) Investment
Management Limited

REFBEEKEREERAA
UB China Business
Management Co. Ltd.

shares of HK$1 each

R-ZBZZF+-HKH 2B EREEIETZ

RsH M Rl

Deregistered on 6th 2 ordinary shares - 100%
December 2002 of HK$1 each

ERARITZ A 1REEIZETZ
TRHOEFAEE (Hit31) EBR

Management of 1 ordinary share 100% 100%
the Bank’s PRC of US$1 each
NPL Portfolio
(Note 31)
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25 BE 25 GOODWILL
FEBRERST
Group and Bank
2002 2001
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
A E Cost
®—HA—H At 1st January 709,957 -
NE Additions - 709,957
W+=A=+-A At 315t December 709,957 709,957
Rt Accumulated amortisation
R—HA—H At st January 17,749 =
BiHm Amortisation charge 35,498 17,749
R+ZAR=+—H At 31st December 53,247 17,749
RT+-RA=1+—BEREFE Net book value at 31st December 656,710 692,208
R-ZZT-—FHAMA @ RRTEKRE On 4th May 2001, the Bank entered into the Business Transfer Agreement with
RARI B TERITAI L E R The Industrial and Commercial Bank of China, its ultimate holding company,
Bt RRIOTBGRERBUBREERR pursuant to which the Bank had conditionally agreed to acquire the commercial
AzEENT (9 ?TJ)ZFﬁ%fETT%W& banking business of the Hong Kong branch of the ultimate holding company (the
HF & E2,300,000,000% 7T ([ # = “Branch”) and its net assets of HK$2,300,000,000 (the “Acquisition”) for a
B|) - R{E#A3,000,000,000%E T & consideration of approximately HK$3,000,000,000 which was to be satisfied as
EP #72,120,000, OOO}%TEMZME??WEE?% to approximately HK$2,120,000,000 by the issue and allotment of new ordinary
TR A A BT REER LB R AT ERE shares and convertible preference shares by the Bank to the ultimate holding
%HXZHTLH #7580,000,0005% 7T LA company, as to approximately HK$580,000,000 by the issuance of subordinated
BIOBREBRERRAAZREEB 2N debt due to the ultimate holding company, and as to approximately
B+ #9300,000,0008 TIAR & X T © HK$300,000,000 by cash. The acquisition was completed on 3rd July 2001.
Hﬁzﬁ%%lﬁaﬁé:;ﬁ;ﬁ—itﬁ ZHEER® Amortisation of goodwill from the acquisition of the Branch’s commercial banking
B o ﬁ?‘ﬁ%%ﬂﬁ%ﬁ%”ﬁl%?lEZ?ﬁ@ﬁ& business amounting to approximately HK$35,498,000 (2001: HK$17,749,000)
547 35,498,0008 L (ZFFT—F : is included in “Amortisation charge” above.
17,749,000 7T) - FIA k3 [# 855 % |
—B-
HE LRI BERE2EBREHOAR Amortisation of goodwill from acquisition of an associated company amounting to
838,000 T (ZZZ—F : &) " JIAIR approximately HK$838,000 (2001: HK$Nil) is included in “Investments in
BERFZRE| -7 - associated companies”.
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iR B fisE « NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
#ZE —FF _4F 1= F=+—HIFFZ For the year ended 31st December 2002

ROTEE
ks He
Bank MELE BRRRE
premises and Leasehold Furniture and gt
properties improvements equipment Total
TET TET TET TET
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
Group
Cost or valuation
At st January
2002 712,335 81,997 107,776 902,108
Additions - 3,944 8,383 12,327
Disposals (5,580) (6,933) (3,178) (15,691)
At 31st December
2002 706755 79,008 112,981 898,744
Accumulated depreciation
At st January
2002 46,122 50,197 69,111 165,430
Charge for the year 7,427 6,923 11,129 25,479
Disposals (851) (3,320) (2,474) (6,645)
At 31st December
2002 92,698 93,800 77,766 184,264
Net book value
At 31st December
2002 654,057 25,208 35,215 714,480
At 31st December
2001 666,213 31,800 38,665 736,678
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26

Bank
Cost or valuation

At Tst January 2002
Additions
Disposals

At 31st December
2002

Accumulated depreciation
At st January
2002
Charge for the year
Disposals

At 31st December
2002

Net book value

At 31st December
2002

At 31st December
2001

BOFERMEZRAEREEI T W

T

BN AME

B—NAMEEEMGE

08 HEIMRT(EMERAT « —SE-FFH

FIXED ASSETS (Continued)

BRITEE
SR e
Bank MEEE BRRRE
premises and Leasehold Furniture and st
properties improvements equipment Total
TR FAT TR FRAT
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
712,335 81,997 107,750 902,082
— 3,944 8,383 12,327
(5,580) (6,933) (3,178) (15,691)
706755 79,008 112,955 898,718
46,122 50,197 69,095 165,414
7,427 6,923 11,124 25,474
(851) (3,320) (2,474) (6,645)
_______ 52,698 33800 77745 .....184,243
654,057 25,208 35,210 714,475
666,213 31,800 38,655 736,668

The analysis of cost or valuation of bank premises and properties is as follows:

At cost

At professional valuation in 1994

FEBRERST
Group and Bank
2002 2001
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$°000
44,277 44,277
662,478 668,058
706,755 712,335




26 EEEE @)

BROBERMEZKREFEINOT :

REE - ATHTARFE
— REBEY (BBS0F)
— REBELH (M FI10E50F)

AEEXEBEEHEUNE7REORESH
% BAEHEGMBROTRERYEZE
B -BER-NNEOFEREGZRITFE
KMEEER662,478,0008 T 2HE
B2 EBUNERRE RN TRHEHR
—AARE+ZA=+—REARATER
REMEAFEZRTEERNEZEE
732,700,000/ T if {E i -

REF—AKFBANRLAHAMERRER
BEERET I HGE AETEAZEER
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FIXED ASSETS (Continued)

The net book value of bank premises and properties is analysed as follows:

FEERAET
Group and Bank
2002 2001
FERT FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
In Hong Kong, held on:
— Llong-term leases (over 50 years) 515,664 519,719
— Medium-term leases

(between 10 to 50 years) 138,393 146,494
654,057 666,213

The Group places reliance on paragraph 80 of SSAP 17 which provides exemption
from the need to make regular revaluations of bank premises and properties. The
Bank’s premises and properties were revalued in 1994 by the Directors at
HK$662,478,000 with reference to a valuation made on an open market, existing
use basis by FPDSavills, independent property consultants, which valued the Bank’s
premises and properties at HK$732,700,000 at 31st December 1994.

Based on a valuation made on an open market, existing use basis by FPDSavills,
the aggregate open market value of the Bank's premises and properties located in
Hong Kong was approximately HK$411,300,000 at 31st December 2002. The
effect of such revaluation has not been incorporated in the accounts, but has been
incorporated in the computation of capital adequacy ratio as disclosed in the
section headed Supplementary Financial Information.

The carrying amount of the bank premises and properties of the Group and Bank

would have been HK$232,894,560 (2001: HK$236,465,000) had they been
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation.
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BIOTRXREMEREE TR REHR
TZA=+t—REANIHALHEHZH

DEPOSITS AND BALANCES OF BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL
INSTITUTIONS

The maturity profile of deposits and balances of banks and other financial
institutions analysed by the remaining period as at 31st December to the contractual

BAFmT : maturity dates is as follows:
xEE KR 1T
Group Bank
2002 2001 2002 2001
FET FET FET FAET
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BRERKERERE  Repayable on demand 951,417 754,519 951,417 755,615
“@ANUT Three months or less 11,291,703 6,010,550 11,291,703 6,057,550
—EFFUTERB One year or less, but over
=@A three months 91,000 288,928 91,000 288,928
12,334,120 7,053,997 12,334,120 7,102,093
28 EFER 28 DEPOSITS FROM CUSTOMERS
rEE KR 1T
Group Bank
2002 2001 2002 2001
FET FET FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
EEER K Demand deposits and
e =l current accounts 689,385 504,839 689,481 505,088
HEEX Savings deposits 2,150,712 1,586,969 2,309,642 1,728,355
THRBAER Time, call and notice deposits 35,910,933 27,613,499 35,980,223 27,657,134
38,751,030 29,705,307 38,979,346 29,890,577

EPERRT-ZA=+—HEAHNIHE

The maturity profile of deposits from customers analysed by the remaining period

IFEBZBRATWT - as at 31st December to the contractual maturity dates is as follows:
r5HE RRIT
Group Bank
2002 2001 2002 2001
FHET TET FHET TET
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
AR EREFHIKER  Repayable on demand 2,850,587 2,113,465 3,034,659 2,254,903
=EAKUAT Three months or less 33,020,686 26,294,791 33,064,930 26,338,623
—FHUT One year or less, but over
BHEB=EA three months 2,788,262 1,290,240 2,788,262 1,290,240
RFEHUT Five years or less, but over
BHEB—F one year 91,495 6,811 91,495 6,811
38,751,030 29,705,307 38,979,346 29,890,577
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CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT ISSUED

FEBRART
Group and Bank
2002 2001
FHET TET
HK$’000 HK$'000
Certificates of deposit issued 1,441,952 175,019
Repurchase of certificates of deposit issued (12,950) (175,019)
1,429,002 —

The maturity profile of certificates of deposit issued analysed by the remaining
period as at 31st December to the contractual maturity dates is as follows:

FEBRART
Group and Bank
2002 2001
FHET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
One year or less, but over three months 700,000 —
Five years or less, but over one year 729,002 -
1,429,002 —
DEFERRED TAXATION
FEBRART
Group and Bank
2002 2001
FHET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
At 1st January and 31st December 6,289 6,289

There is no significant potential liability for deferred taxation not provided for.
The revaluation of bank premises and properties does not constitute a timing

difference for deferred taxation purposes as realisation of the revaluation surplus
would not result in a taxation liability.
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OTHER ACCOUNTS AND PROVISIONS

Included in “Other accounts and provisions” of the Group are Junior performance
linked notes (PLNs) issued by UB China Business Management Co. Ltd. (“UBCBM”)
which have been fully written down as follows:

r&E
Group
2002 2001
FHET TET
HK$’000 HK$'000
Junior PLNs 600,952 600,952
Less: Write-down in the light of the
provisions required on the PRC
NPL Portfolio (600,952) (600,952)

UBCBM is a wholly-owned subsidiary established by the Bank in 2000 as a
special purpose asset management company for the purpose of maximising the
level of recovery of certain classified loans of the Bank which were extended
towards Mainland China related business (the “PRC NPL Portfolio”) over a five-
year term. UBCBM funded the purchase of the PRC NPL Portfolio by issuing two
tranches of PLNs at par value. The Senior PLNs were subscribed for in full by the
Bank as partial consideration for the transfer of the PRC NPL Portfolio and are
included in the Bank’s balance sheet as held-to-maturity securities amounting
HK$406,583,000 as at 31st December 2002. All financial effects associated
with the Senior PLNs were eliminated in the Group accounts.

The Junior PLNs were offered for subscription to all shareholders and underwritten
by China Merchants Holdings (Hong Kong) Company Limited. The Bank received
cash funds of HK$600,952,000 immediately upon completion. Since the Junior
PLNs were to bear the first risk of loss against the PRC NPL Portfolio, the redemption
amount of the Junior PLNs was fully written down as the Directors are of the
opinion that the possibility of any repayment of the Junior PLNs at the end of the
five-year term is remote.
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LOAN CAPITAL

Subordinated floating rate notes
— with a final maturity on
2nd July 2011
— with a final maturity on
12th December 2011
— with a final maturity on
26th March 2012
— with a final maturity on
8th December 2012
— perpetual
Exchange adjustment

FEERAET
Group and Bank

2002 2001
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$°000
584,820 584,820
623,808 623,808
545,916 -
500,000 -
1,000,000 -
186 -
3,254,730 1,208,628

Loan capital were raised by the Bank for the development and expansion of
business and have been fully subscribed by the ultimate holding company. These
notes qualify for and have been included as the Bank’s supplementary capital in
accordance with the Third Schedule to the Banking Ordinance.

The notes which have a final maturity on 2nd July 2011 are raised to finance the

Acquisition.
SHARE CAPITAL
(a)

Ordinary shares

Authorised:

At 1st January and 31st December
2001, and 31st December 2002

SREE2RTZHER
Ordinary shares

of HK$2 each
RinEH

Number of shares

1,000,000,000

Fi&T
HK$'000

2,000,000
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33 SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)
(a) Ordinary shares (Continued)

Issved and fully paid:

At Tst January 2001

Increase during the year ended
31st December 2001

At 31st December 2001 and
Tst January 2002

Increase during the year ended

31st December 2002

At 31st December 2002

SREE2ETZHER
Ordinary shares
of HK$2 each

R17EE FET
Number of shares HK$°000
450,871,855 901,744
80,447,449 160,895
531,319,304 1,062,639
93,055,000 186,110
624,374,304 1,248,749

Details relating to the issue of ordinary shares in the year are set out in

Note (c) below.

(b) Convertible non-cumulative preference shares

Authorised:

At Tst January 2001
Increase during the year ended

31st December 2001

At 31st December 2001,
1st January 2002 and
31st December 2002

BREESETLZ
TERFRTTEBER
Convertible
non-cumulative
preference shares of

HKS$5 each
RHEE FET
Number of shares HK$°000
232,000,000 1,160,000
232,000,000 1,160,000
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33 SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Convertible non-cumulative preference shares (Continved)

Issued and fully paid:

BREESERTZ
TERFRTTEBER
Convertible
non-cumulative
preference shares of
HK$5 each
R 8E FET
Number of shares HK$000
At Tst January 2001 — —
Increase during the year ended
31st December 2001 202,219,218 1,011,096
At 31st December 2001,
1st January 2002 and
31st December 2002 202,219,218 1,011,096

Details relating to the terms of these convertible non-cumulative preference
shares are set out in Note (d) below.

Issue of shares in the year

On 21st May 2002, 93,055,000 existing ordinary shares held by the
ultimate holding company were placed to independent investors pursuant to
the Placing Agreement dated 7th May 2002 and 93,055,000 new ordinary
shares of HK$2.00 each were subscribed by the ultimate holding company
pursuant to the Subscription Agreement dated 7th May 2002 at a placing
price of HK$8.16 each which represented a premium of HK$6.16 each
(the “Subscription”). The proceeds from the Subscription were used by the
Bank as general working capital. The issued share capital of the Bank was
increased to HK$1,248,749,000 after completion of the Subscription. These
shares rank pari passu with the existing shares.

Terms of the convertible preference shares

The holders of the convertible preference shares are entitled to receive,
pari passu, any dividend or distribution payable to the ordinary shareholders
on the basis that each convertible preference share is equivalent to one
ordinary share. The right to such dividend is non-cumulative. On a return of
capital on liquidation or otherwise, the assets of the Bank available for
distribution among its shareholders shall be applied in paying up to a
maximum of HK$2.00 paid or deemed paid on each convertible preference
share in priority to any payment to the holders of the ordinary share and
thereafter the holders of the convertible preference shares and the ordinary
shares shall participate in the assets of the Bank on a pari passu basis.

105

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited ® 2002 Annual Report



iR B fisE « NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
#2 —FF_4F 1= H=+—HIFZ For the year ended 31st December 2002

33 K& )

(d)

(e)

TEBRELERER &)

AERERRYER THEALR
RER EARTEMRRERAE £
= R EBREERSE AR
KRR - ERIBERT - KA E
BEERFEATREHEIENA

ELEE—%-

AEBEERRETR  JERKE
MRARRITZEBR - REHR K
RHZEBREB DR TREERR
RITN BT ERE LR ZEM
DIRHERRE 2 M E 2 B K
EeoREBmELERMER EMNE
BEREEZTIRSS  BEUER
EABREETFELEE -

BRERARKE2HRBE I E SR
BEh -

Bk
) (EEBEBEE

FRLEELBBRE - MR
FE_F+-A=1+-H ¥
AT 1 RAT 62 2 P AR -

i) HBETRFBONREMETRE
g

RERBPREREEERTAE
BAOREME » ARITRER
—EERE=A-TN\HES
ZBRRFHAEG LBB AR
ERRERRERNFEEZ
IEHRERERTAIREAR
RITRMD 2 BRE - ATA
ATHRERTAEE - 5%
THEREE - IRSEOR
BRAEAMNR7788T 21T
EERBART BN - A
i ERHTEOEREER
REBHNFBLFHRIE W%
FikEz AT EHESRES
{€51,211,063,000/& 7T - A
TERITEMBAHKE -

106 HEIMRT EMNERAT « —SB=FFH

33 SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Terms of the convertible preference shares (Continved)

The convertible preference shares confer no voting rights to their holders in
any general meeting of the Bank, except in a class meeting of holders of
convertible preference shares, in which case each convertible preference
share will entitle the holder to one vote in such class meeting.

The convertible preference shares are convertible to ordinary shares of the
Bank at any time following their issue. The number of ordinary shares to be
allotted upon conversion is determined by a conversion factor which takes
into account any distribution or changes in the capital structure of the Bank
subsequent to the issue of the convertible preference shares. The shortfall of
the nominal value of any ordinary shares required to be allotted upon
conversion of the preference shares shall be dealt with in the convertible
preference share premium.

The convertible preference shares have been fully subscribed by the ultimate
holding company.

Share options
(i)  Employee share option scheme

During the year, no option has been granted and at 31st December
2002, there were no options outstanding.

(i) Issue of options in connection with the issue of Junior PLNs

In connection with the issue of Junior PLNs by UBCBM, the shareholders
of the Bank had by a resolution passed at the Extraordinary General
Meeting held on 28th March 2000 approved the issue of options to
subscribe for shares of the Bank at the end of the five-year term of
the Junior PLNs subject to the fulfillment of certain conditions. These
options, if issued, would allow the holders of the Junior PLNs to
subscribe for shares in the Bank at an exercise price of HK$7.78.
However, no options will be issued if total recoveries of the PRC NPL
Portfolio at the end of the five-year term of the Junior PLNs are below

HK$1,211,063,000.
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34 B 34 RESERVES

FEE Group

2002

R-EE-%-f-H
Bl

BARMB 3
FRIEEERE L
EHNTEEY

HEFRERE
Rz &E%
HERTNE

BhBERa
ZEMBBR

ERER
REERF
Bf-2E-f
REHRE R
B8 (K1)
BENZE%F
REHRE (A1)

ARTRMEBARR

BeER

R-FR_H
A=t

T A

—REREEREEFEARERNER
P LA HA K o

At Tst January 2002

Issue of shares

Share issue expense

Change in fair value
of non-rading
securities

Disposal of non-trading
securities

Disposal of a bank
property

Release of revaluation
deficit of an
associated company

Exchange differences

Profit for the year

2001 final and special
dividends paid
[Note 11)

2002 interim dividends
paid (Note 11)

At 315t December 2002

Representing:
Bank and subsidiaries
Associated companies

At 31st December 2002

TERFRG

BEREE

Convertible

non-

EEREE cumulative

ROTEE
EftfE
Bank

RE
BB

Ordinary preference premises Investment  SEf#E —KHEE  REEAN
share share revaluation revaluation Exchange  General Retained @t
premium  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve  earnings Total
Thxn Thxn Thxn TER TER TER ThExn ThExn
HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HKS$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
1,224,894 505,496 412,631 138,766 - 219,200 495,969 2,996,956
573,219 - - - - - - 573,219
(11,427) - - - - - - (n,827)
- - - (108,388) - - - (108,388)
- - - 781 - - - 781
- - (4,120) - - - 4,120 -
- - - 1,990 - - - 1,990
- - - - (21) - - (21)
- - - - - - 482,429 482,429
- - - - - - (161,378) (161,378)
- - - - - - (82,659) (82,659)
1,786,686 505,496 408,511 33,149 (21) 219,200 738,481 3,691,502
1,786,686 505,496 408,511 33,957 - 219,200 724,420 3,678,270
- - - (808) (21) - 14,061 13,232
1,786,686 505,496 408,511 33,149 (21) 219,200 738,481 3,691,502

The general reserve comprised previous years’ transfers from retained earnings
and is distributable.
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34 #®E B

R-EE-%-H—-H

BIIR
Bk 2%
HREEERREZ
EHFRTEE
HEFRIERE
k&S

HERTHE

AEREM (Bi£10)

R

{3

EN-2%
BERERIRE
(HaT1)
ENZTE_FhY

RE

:

I M

—FRH

(HizE11)

2
A

5
-8

Bank

At 1st January 2002

Issue of shares

Share issue expenses

Change in fair value of
non-rading securities

Disposal of non-trading
securities

Disposal of a bank
property

Profit for the year
[Note 10)

2001 final and special
dividends paid
[Note 11)

2002 inferim dividends
paid (Nofe 11)

At 315t December 2002
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34 RESERVES (Continued)

2002
mERE RS
BEREE
Convertible RORE
non- EfifhE k&
EEREE cumulative Bank B
Ordinary preference  premises Investment -RiEE RERHN
share share revaluation revaluation General  Retained Mt
premium  premium reserve reserve reserve  earnings Total
FEx FEx FEx FEx FEx FEx FEx
HKS$’000  HK$’000  HK$’000  HKS’'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HKS’000
1,224,894 505,496 412,631 141,076 219,200 422,774 2,926,071
573,219 - - - - - 573,219
(11,427) - - - - - (M,827)
- - - (108,388) - - (108,388)
- - - 781 - - 781
- - (4120) - - 4,120 -
- - - - - 522,235 522,235
- - - - - (161,378) (161,378)
- - - - - (82,659)  (82,659)
1,786,686 505,496 408,511 33,469 219,200 705,092 3,658,454
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34 f@E®) 34 RESERVES (Continued)
r5E Group
2001
AR 25t
BEREE
Convertible RITBE
non- B RE
LEREE  cumulative Bank BRER
Ordinary  preference premises  Investment —REE R A
share share  revaluation  revaluation General Retained @5t
premium premium reserve reserve reserve earnings Total

TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

RZZ2Z—F—-F—8 At lst Janvary 2001

LEAES as previously reported 782,447 - 412,631 6,444 219,200 202,234 1,622,956

RmerEBEREIR  Effect of adopting SSAPY

(B &2 (revised) - - - - - 58,613 58,613
RZZZ—FE—-F—H At st Janvary 2001

R as restated 782,447 - 412,631 6,444 219,200 260,847 1,681,569
Bl Issue of shares 442,461 505,548 = = = = 948,009
BIRAZAX Share issue expenses (14) (52) - - - - (66)
HREEERRYL Change in fair value of

BHDQ MEH@J nonrading securifies - - - 141,076 - - 141,076
i) 155@“*’\ Share of revaluation deficit

BiBE of an associated company - - - (122) - = (122)

HEFHHEEE Disposal of non-trading

Rz &5 securities - - - (8,632) - - (8,632)
KEERA Profit for the year = = = = = 330,412 330,412

BER-ZZEE 2000 final dividends paid

Fiie - - - - S 58613 (58613)

BERZZT—F4H 2001 interim dividends

e (ﬁﬁ;ﬂ ) ocid [Nofe 11) _ _ - - = p6s77)  [36.677)
RZBE-F At 315t December 2001

TZA=t-H 1,224,894 505,496 412,631 138,766 219,200 495969 2,996,956
RE&: Representing:
AREOTRNBAR Bank and subsidiaries 1,224,894 505,496 412,631 141,565 219,200 480,714 2,984,500
HERT Associated company - - - (2,799) - 15,255 12,456
RZET-F At 315t December 2001

TZA=t-H 1,224,894 505,496 412,631 138,766 219,200 495969 2,996,956
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34 @B @ 34 RESERVES (Continued)
BT Bank
2001
ERERH
BEREE
Convertible BIRE
non- EftEE RE
EERAE  cumulative Bank BB
Ordinary  preference premises  Investment — R REEM
share share  revaluation  revaluation General Retained @t
premium premium reserve reserve reserve earnings Total
THL THEL THETL THEL THEL THEL THEL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZZZE-F—-F—H At Ist Janvary 2001 as
LEAES previously reported 782,447 - 412,631 - 219,200 141,428 1,555,706
RmeEBEREIR  Effect of adopting SSAPY
(B & & (revised) = = = = = 58,613 58,613
RZZZ-F—-F—H At Ist January 2001 as
ER restated 782,447 - 412,631 - 219,200 200,041 1,614,319
B1kH Issue of shares 442,461 505,548 = = = = 948,009
BARAZAX Share issue expenses (14) (52) - - - - (66)
HREEERRYL Change in fair value of
EHLTEEY nonrading securities - - - 141,076 - - 141,076
REEEF Profit for the year
(HEE10) [Note 10) - - - - - 318,023 318,023
BER-ZZEE 2000 final dividends paid
*HRE - - - - S 8e1y (58613
BERZZZ-F 2001 interim dividends
BEERE (1) poid Note 11) - - - - - BT [(36.477)
RZZ2T-F At 315t December 2001
+-A=1+-H 1,224,894 505,496 412,631 141,076 219,200 422,774 2,926,071
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35 BALANCES WITH GROUP COMPANIES

(a)

iR B ft & « NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
#ZE —FF _4F 1= F=+—HIFFZ For the year ended 31st December 2002

Included in the following balance sheet captions are balances
with the ultimate holding company:

On-balance sheet

Cash and short-term funds

Cash and balances with banks and

other financial institutions
Money at call and short notice

Placements with banks and other
financial institutions maturing
between one and twelve months

Advances and other accounts

Deposits and balances of banks
and other financial institutions

Certificates of deposit issued

Other accounts and provisions

Loan capital

FEBRFRTT

Group and Bank
2002 2001
FET FHE T
HK$’000 HK$°000
52,135 54,857
7,814,649 1,528,208
7,866,784 1,583,065
1,033,844 83,938
85,049 80,324
8,985,677 1,747,327
11,447,647 6,293,676
700,000 -
120,764 96,281
12,268,411 6,389,957
3,254,730 1,208,628

Note: Included in deposits and balances of banks and other financial institutions is
an amount of HK$2,105,676,000 (2001: 233,928,000) representing
utilisation of a standby credit facility of HK$6,000,000,000 (2001:
HK$6,000,000,000) granted by the ultimate holding company to the Bank in
July 2000 for working capital purposes.
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35 HEEERELRAZESR @) 35 BALANCES WITH GROUP COMPANIES (Continued)
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Included in the following balance sheet captions are balances

Off-balance sheet

Foreign exchange contracts
— contractual amount

Interest rate swaps
— notional principal

Currency options
— contractual amount
— options purchased
— options written

Bond options
— contractual amount
— options purchased
— options written

Interest rate options
— contractual amount
— options written

Other commitments with maturity

within 1 year
— overdraft facility

with the ultimate holding company: (Continved)

FEBREARST
Group and Bank

2002 2001
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$°000
8,046,200 6,514,671
7,366,960 6,346,147
390,100 236,107
- 80,315
390,100 316,422
- 233,928
- 155,952
- 389,880
404,940 —
1,013,844 549,880
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iR B ft & « NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
#ZE —FF _4F 1= F=+—HIFFZ For the year ended 31st December 2002

BALANCES WITH GROUP COMPANIES (Continued)

(b) Included in the following balance sheet captions are balances

with fellow subsidiaries:

On-balance sheet

Advances and other accounts

Deposits and balances of banks
and other financial institutions

Deposits from customers

Other accounts and provisions

Off-balance sheet

Foreign exchange contracts
— contractual amount

Interest rate swaps
— notional principal

FEERART
Group and Bank

2002
FET
HK$’000

3,020

2001
FET
HK$'000

14,111

60,000
639,791
1,308

563,313

701,099

563,313

107,800

265,159
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35 BALANCES WITH GROUP COMPANIES (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Included in the following balance sheet captions are balances
with subsidiaries of the Bank:

AR
Bank
2002 2001
FHET TFHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
On-balance sheet
Senior PLNs issued by UBCBM
included in the balance sheet
under “Held-to-maturity securities” 406,583 699,297
Deposits and balances of banks
and other financial institutions - 48,096
Deposits from customers 228,316 185,467
Other accounts and provisions 39,733 42,988
268,049 276,551
Off-balance sheet
Forward exchange contracts
— notional principal 242,095 1,045,111

Included in the following balance sheet captions are balances
with an associated company:

AEERAFRIT
Group and Bank
2002 2001
FET TET
HK$’000 HK$'000
On-balance sheet
Deposits from customers 15,884 —
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iR B ft & « NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
#ZE —FF _4F 1= F=+—HIFFZ For the year ended 31st December 2002

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group entered into various transactions in the normal course
of business with related parties, including the ultimate holding company, fellow
subsidiaries and associated companies.

(a) Summary of transactions entered into during the ordinary course
of business with related parties

The aggregated income and expense arising from the related party
transactions with the ultimate holding company, fellow subsidiaries and
associated companies are summarised as follows:

2002 2001
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$°000
Interest income
— Placement (Note (i) 38,298 19,782
— Interest rate swaps (Note (ii)) 307,313 175,749
Interest expense
— Deposits (Note (iii)) (153,044) (200,733)
— Interest rate swaps (Note (ii)) (345,375) (193,353)
— Certificates of deposit issued
(Note (iv)) (13,304) —
— Loan capital (Note (v)) (38,263) (10,496)
Net option premium expense
(Note (vi)) (782) -
Management fee income (Note (vii)) 4,500 2,250
Service fee income (Note (x)) 45 -
Service fee expense (Note (ix/) (3,502) -
Premises expense (Note (viii)) 5,926 (3,095)
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36 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(a)

Summary of transactions entered into during the ordinary course
of business with related parties (Continved)

Notes:

(i) Interest income was received on inter-bank deposits placed with the ultimate
holding company and fellow subsidiaries at prevailing market rates.

(i) Interest income and expense was received from and paid to the ultimate
holding company and fellow subsidiaries on the interest rate swaps at prevailing
market rates. These transactions included interest rate swaps entered on a
back-to-back basis with the ultimate holding company and fellow subsidiaries.

(iii)  Interest expense was paid on the deposits taken from the ultimate holding
company and fellow subsidiaries.

(i) Interest expense was paid to the ultimate holding company for fixed rate
certificates of deposit issued by the Bank and subscribed by the ultimate
holding company with nominal value of HK$700,000,000.

(v} Interest expense was paid to the ultimate holding company for subordinated
floating rate notes issued by the Bank and fully subscribed by the ultimate
holding company (Note 32).

(vi)  Net option premium expense was paid to the ultimate holding company and
fellow subsidiaries on the various option contracts at prevailing market rates.

(vii)  In accordance with the Collaboration Agreement dated 3rd July 2001,
management fee income was received from the Branch for the provision of
services such as accounting and budgeting, internal audit, marketing and
back office settlement and clearing.

(viii)  In accordance with the Collaboration Agreement dated 3rd July 2001 and the
Licence Agreement dated 27th December 2001, premises expense was paid
to the Branch for using a portion of floor area rented by the Branch.

(ix)  In accordance with the Service Levels Agreement dated 21st February 2002,
service fee expense was paid to the ultimate holding company for the provision
of data processing services to the Bank.

(x)  In accordance with the Outsourcing Agreement dated 18th December 2002,
service fee income was received from the Branch for the provision of
management, administrative and marketing services in respect of credit card
business of the Branch launched in Hong Kong commencing from 18th December

2002.
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36 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Buy and sale of certain assets from/to related parties
Sub-participation of syndicated loans

During the year, the Bank entered into various capital market transactions
with the Branch, the ultimate holding company and fellow subsidiaries.
These transactions included sub-participation in syndicated loans of the
Bank by the Branch, the ultimate holding company and fellow subsidiaries
for a total of HK$7,940,249,000 (2001: HK$Nil) and similar sub-
participation in syndicated loans of the Branch, the ultimate holding company
and fellow subsidiaries by the Bank for a total of HK$1,451,000,000
(2001: 1,697,000,000). Immaterial fee charge was paid on loan transfers
in 2002 (2001: HK$Nil). These transactions were priced based on either
on the terms of the underlying loan agreement, if applicable, or prevailing
market rates if such comparable rates are available, or on terms that are no
less favourable than those available to other independent sydicate members.

Buy and sale of debt securities

During the year, the Bank bought and sold debt securities with a carrying
value of HK$749,529,000 (2001: HK$Nil) and HK$2,548,323,000 (2001:
HK$Nil) respectively from and to the ultimate holding company and fellow
subsidiaries. These transactions were entered into on normal commercial
terms with reference to prevailing market rates.

Undertaking from the ultimate holding company

To demonstrate its support to the Bank, a Letter of Comfort dated 3rd July
2001 was executed by the ultimate holding company, pursuant to which it
will provide the Bank with such funding as may be required by the Bank to
ensure that it will maintain sufficient capital and liquidity levels.

Simultaneously on 3rd July 2001, the ultimate holding company and the
Bank entered into a guarantee agreement whereby the ultimate holding
company agreed fo guarantee to the extent of HK$9,000,000,000 the
payment obligations of certain customers whose “large exposures” were
transferred to the Bank pursuant to the Business Transfer Agreement and to
indemnify the Bank in respect of any losses incurred if any obligation of
such customers become unenforceable. The amount of such on-balance sheet
and off-balance sheet large exposures of the Bank covered by this guarantee
as at 31st December 2002 was HK$3,970,478,000 and
HK$1,705,566,000 respectively (2001: HK$5,697,000,000 and
HK$1,781,000,000 respectively).
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37
(a)

SEGMENT REPORTING

Class of business

The Group operates predominantly in commercial banking which comprises
commercial and retail banking, treasury and markets, and corporate and
investment banking activities. Commercial and retail banking includes retail
banking, commercial lending and trade finance. Treasury and markets
activities include foreign exchange, money market and capital market
activities. Corporate and investment banking activities mainly comprise
corporate banking, the provision of debt capital market and corporate
finance and advisory services.

N . Group
B WA Net interest income
Hi g @A Other operating income
HERA Operating income
EEXH Operating expenses
BEHH Amortisation of goodwill
MBEEES A 2% Operating profit/(loss)
&/ (B1E) before provisions
(%) /#E (Charge for)/write-back
REER of bad and doubtful debts
BERF/ (BE) Operating profit/(loss)
HEEFEEAERBE Netloss from disposal
e of fixed assets
HEREERZE  Net gain on disposal and
NHZESFR redemption of held-to-
FRIEEERE maturity securities and

B2 UTIFE
RENGZ B4

non-rading securities
Write-back of provision on

B RIERE held-to-maturity securities
BERGES and impairment loss on
ZREER non-trading securities
[E{REE & NAlZ  Share of net losses of
BEFE associated companies
BRE AR, Profit/(loss) before
(B#8) taxation
SEEE/BE  Segment assets/liabilities
BAXH Capital expenditure
nEER Depreciation charge
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2002
¥R
[GES REBT
HEERT B%&  Corporate
Commercial Treasury and
and retail and investment X8 @5t
banking markets banking Unallocated Total
FET FET FET FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
257,108 219,945 147,951 64,185 689,189
48,642 39,832 266,476 35,782 390,732
305,750 259,777 414,427 99,967 1,079,921
(128,037)  (36,913)  (42,343)  (99,967) (307,260)
- - - (36,336) (36,336)
177,713 222,864 372,084 (36,336) 736,325
(91,581) 129 (46,242)  (43,818) (181,512)
86,132 222,993 325,842 (80,154) 554,813
(3,208) - (5) (1,672) (4,885)
- 26,390 130 1,749 28,269
- - - 1,252 1,252
82,924 249,383 325,967 (78,825) 579,449
- - - (8,620) (8,620)
82,924 249,383 325,967 (87,445) 570,829
13,419,431 27,032,391 19,105,737 2,704,430 62,261,989
4,339 108 58 7,822 12,327
11,577 317 74 13,511 25,479
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37 HWBHRE &) 37 SEGMENT REPORTING (Continuved)
(a) EX%EE#) (a) Class of business (Continued)
XEE Group
2001
bRE
GRS RAERT
ETERT & Corporate
Commercial Treasury and
and retail and investment AOE st
banking markets banking  Unallocated Total
FET FET FET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FH S HA Net interest income 246,153 68,933 82,676 90,309 488,071
Hih & B A Other operating income 47,158 28,435 116,472 10,854 202,919
BERA Operating income 293,311 97,368 199,148 101,163 690,990
HET M Operating expenses (137,037) (22,954 (28,392 (101,114 (289,497)
BEBH Amortisation of goodwill - - - (17,749) (17,749)
Mk%#EHEAI 2% Operating profit/(loss)
ERAl (B8) before provisions 156,274 74,414 170,756 (17,700) 383,744
(%) /#E (Charge for)/write-back
RER of bad and doubtful debts (36,038) - 103 (30,075) (66,010)
Ei&EHEA, (BI8) Operating profit/(loss) 120,236 74,414 170,859 (47,779) 317,734
HEBTEEZE Net gain/(loss) from disposal
Fl/(B18)FRE  of fixed assets 1,399 - - (49) 1,350
HERBOEZE Net gain on disposal and
Mz ERR redemption of held-fo-maturity
EREEERE securities and non-trading
EH 2w FE securities = 20,694 = = 20,694

2 5|12 3 % % & Provision on held-to-maturity
RIEHEEEME  securities and impairment

BEHZAEEE losses on non-trading securities - - - (1,677) (1,677)
FEAHE Provision on property

ESLH available for sale - - - (10,000) (10,000)

121,635 95,108 170,859 (59,501) 328,101

FEBERAZ Share of net profits of an

i M R associated company - - - 3,480 3,480
BREBERTER Profit/(loss) before

(B #) taxation 121,635 95,108 170,859 (56,021) 331,581
AHMEE/ AR Segment assets/liabilities 11,573,238 13,497,046 15,192,536 3,234,409 43,497,229
BEARYH Capital expenditure 16,005 1,790 738 10,132 28,665
NEER Depreciation charge 11,979 389 87 12,429 24,884
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37

38

SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(b)

Geographical area

The Group operates predominantly in Hong Kong. Less than 10% of the
Group's income, profit, assets, liabilities, contingent liabilities or commitments
is aftributable to the Group’s overseas operations.

OFF-BALANCE SHEET EXPOSURES

(a)

Contingent liabilities and commitments

The following is a summary of the contractual amounts of each significant
class of contingent liability and commitment:

Direct credit substitutes
Transaction-related contingencies
Trade-related contingencies
Other commitments with an
original maturity of:
— under 1 year or which are
unconditionally cancellable
— 1 year and over
Forward deposits placed

AEBERARST

Group and Bank
2002 2001
FHET TE T
HK$’000 HK$°000
2,491,814 2,265,182
126,649 -
627,797 508,438
4,161,036 1,977,302
9,261,792 6,272,577
49,438 -
16,718,526 11,023,499
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38 OFF-BALANCE SHEET EXPOSURES (Continued)

AWTHREFENETELAREE

BE 2T

AKE

EXa4
2 H
ok
BARE
A

MERH
&R
BABE
E e

Ead
BARZHIE
ELRRAE
BABHHIE
ELERE

Group

Exchange rate contracts
Forwards
Swaps
Options purchased
Options written

Inferest rate contracts
Inferest rate swaps
Options purchased
Options written

Other contracts
Equity options purchased
Equity options written
Bond options purchased
Bond options written

(b) Derivatives

The following is an analysis of the aggregate notional amounts of each
significant type of derivatives:

BB i fst

Trading Hedging Total
2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001
FEn T TiExn T TiEx F#T
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$°000
6,500,181 13,152 73,852 386,344 6,574,033 399,496
1,779,682 - 11,958,359 13,877,839 13,738,041 13,877,839
5,690,033 236,107 - - 5,690,033 236,107
5,690,038 236,107 - - 5,690,038 236,107
19,659,934 485,366 12,032,211 14,264,183 31,692,145 14,749,549
7,799 - 10,574,251 7,813,078 10,582,050 7,813,078
203,994 - 1,265,856 - 1,469,850 -
53,994 - 1,031,892 - 1,085,886 -
285787 - 12,871,999 7813078 13,137,786 _ 7,813,078
44914 - - - 44,914 -
44,914 - - - 44,914 -
- 233,928 - - - 233,928
- 233,928 - - - 233,928
______ 89,828 4785 - - 89828 46785
20,015,549 953,222 24,904,210 22,077,261 44,919,759 23,030,483
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38

Bank

Exchange rate contracts

Forwards

Swaps

Options purchased
Options written

Interest rate contracts

Inferest rate swaps
Options purchased
Options written

Other contracts

Equity options purchased
Equity options written
Bond options purchased
Bond options written
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OFF-BALANCE SHEET EXPOSURES (Continued)

(b) Derivatives (Continued)

BB ¥ ast

Trading Hedging Total
2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001
Fén FET FEn F#T TiExn T
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
6,500,181 13,152 315,947 1,432,055 6,816,128 1,445,207
1,779,682 - 11,958,359 13,877,839 13,738,041 13,877,839
5,690,033 236,107 - - 5,690,033 236,107
5,690,038 236,107 - - 5,690,038 236,107
19,659,934 485,366 12,274,306 15,309,894 31,934,240 15,795,260
7,799 - 10,574,251 7,813,078 10,582,050 7,813,078
203,994 - 1,265,856 - 1,469,850 -
______ 53,994 - 1031892 - 108588 -
25787 - 12,871,999 7813078 13,137,786 _ 7,813,078
44914 - - - 44,914 -
44914 - - - 44,914 -
- 233,928 - - - 233,928
- 233,928 - - - 233,928
______ 89,828 46785 - - 89,828 4673856
20,015,549 953,222 25,146,305 23,122,972 45,161,854 24,076,194

The Group did not enter into any bilateral netting arrangements during the
year and accordingly the following amounts are shown on a gross basis.
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38 OFF-BALANCE SHEET EXPOSURES (Continued)

(b)

Group

Contingent liabilities and
commitments

Derivatives:
— Exchange rate contracts
— Interest rate contracts
— Other contracts

Bank

Contingent liabilities and
commitments

Derivatives:
— Exchange rate contracts
— Interest rate contracts
— Other contracts

Derivatives (Continued)

mEEEREEE
Credit risk EERAE

weighted amount Replacement cost
2002 2001 2002 2001
FET TFET FHET TFET
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

5,049,274 3,373,838
46,153 35,642 48,251 32,066
98,022 41,746 405,508 134,990
- 570 238 2,852
144,175 77,958 453,997 169,908
mEEEREEE
Credit risk EERAE

weighted amount Replacement cost
2002 2001 2002 2001
FET TE T FHET TFET
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

5,049,274 3,373,838

47,557 41,456 48,637 33,237
98,022 41,746 405,508 134,990
- 570 - 2,852
145,579 83,772 454,145 171,079

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited ® 2002 Annual Report 123



& B P &E »

#

38

39

40

R-ZFBE_F+_A=+—0 AKER
BAURELEROEARRRIN ZRE
He@EmT

tHRET
— TRB—F
— — %L EREFUM

124 HEIMERTEEMN ERDF « —EE-FFR

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

38 OFF-BALANCE SHEET EXPOSURES (Continued)

(b)

Derivatives (Continued)

The contract amounts of these instruments indicate the volume of transactions
outstanding as at the balance sheet date; they do not represent the amounts
at risk.

The credit risk weighted amounts are the amounts which have been calculated
in accordance with the Third Schedule of the Banking Ordinance and
guidelines issued by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority. The amounts
calculated are dependent upon the status of the counterparty and the maturity
characteristics of each type of contract.

Replacement cost is the cost of replacing all contracts which have a positive
value when marked to market (should the counterparty default on its
obligations) and is obtained by marking to market contracts with a positive
value. Replacement cost is a close approximation of the credit risk for these
contracts at the balance sheet date.

39 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

40

Capital commitments for fixed assets outstanding as at 31st December not provided
for in the accounts were as follows:

AEERAERT
Group and Bank
2002 2001
FET THET
HK$’000 HK$°000
Expenditure contracted but not provided for 24,956 2,893

There are no other commitments outstanding as at 31st December 2002 (2001:

Nil).

E2-FLE_4F+ = =1 —HIFFJE For the year ended 31st December 2002
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LEASE COMMITMENTS

At 31st December 2002 the Group had future aggregate minimum lease payment
under non-cancellable operating leases as follows:

AEBERARST
Group and Bank
2002 2001
FHET THET
HK$’000 HK$°000
Land and buildings
— Not later than one year 3,788 4,053
— Later than one year and not

later than five years 1,679 902
5,467 4,955




42 FEBREREBRME

iR B fisE « NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
#ZE —FF _4F 1= F=+—HIFFZ For the year ended 31st December 2002

BRTTERAEBZER 41 LOANS TO OFFICERS
REBEBREEBIZE161B(4B)IEZHE - Particulars of loans made to officers and disclosed pursuant to section 161B(4B)
THRABERZEREZELT of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance are as follows:
RT-ZA=+-HzREEHRE FABRSHER
Balance outstanding at Maximum balance
31st December during the year
2002 2001 2002 2001
FET FHET FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
RAEBERER Aggregate amount outstanding
MBS eR in respect of principal and
interest 49,398 59,120 61,869 103,576

42 NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

FRARMESH 2N (a) Analysis of changes in financing during the year
BRA&(BERE)
BAEX Share capital ENRE
Loan (including Dividends
capital premiums) paid
(Kt5t32) (F3E33%34) (Hf7£34) @t
[Nofe 32]  (Note 33 & 34) [Nofe 34) Total
FHET FET FET FET
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R-_ET—F At st January 2001
—R—H - 1,684,191 - 1,684,191
BEEHEESAE  Net cash inflow/(outflow) from
A/ (FE)F8E  financing activities 618,132 (66) (95,290) 522,776
NERERE Shares issued for non-cash
BIkRG consideration — 2,120,000 = 2,120,000
MIERENRBEHEIT  Loan capital issued for non-cash
fEABK consideration 580,000 = = 580,000
EAERZ Interest element on loan capital
MEEH 10,496 - - 10,496
ERRE Dividends paid — — 95,290 95,290
RZZE—F At 31st December 2001
+=ZR=+—-A 1,208,628 3,804,125 - 5,012,753
BEEFHEESAA  Net cash inflow/(outflow) from
/ORd) 58 financing activities 2,007,653 747,902 (244,037) 2,511,518
BAEXZ Interest element on loan capital
MEEH 38,263 - - 38,263
ERRE Dividends paid - - 244,037 244,037
EHZE2FE  Effect of foreign exchange
differences 186 - - 186
R-ZET_F At 31st December 2002
+ZA=+—H 3,254,730 4,552,027 — 7,806,757
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42 ZEBRERERWT @ 42 NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (Continved)
(b) REeRZRARSEBHEHBZAIN (b) Analysis of the balances of cash and cash equivalents
2002 2001
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
RITAEREMERKE Cash and balances with banks and
ZHe Rk other financial institutions 161,525 176,625
BAGTRREHBAER Money at call and short notice 15,402,917 5,892,102
REBE=1EARNEH Treasury bills with original maturity
ZEH within three months 92,844 185,000
REBR=EARNIHZ Placements with banks and other
RITAEREM SR financial institutions with original
HEFR maturity within three months 1,033,844 240,135
REBE=EANTEHZ Deposits and balances of banks and
RITAEREM S other financial institutions with
BEBERRER original maturity within three months ~ (12,169,030) (6,678,468)
4,522,100 (184,606)
43 BRERDT 43 ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY
MAEARKMBBGES 2BEERET The ultimate holding company is The Industrial and Commercial Bank of China, a
BRI HARITZ REERAT - state-owned enterprise of the government of the People’s Republic of China.
44 BBHEZME 44 APPROVAL OF ACCOUNTS
AUBREN_ZZ=F=-ANBKES The accounts were approved by the Board of Directors on 4th March 2003.
G -
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